
The following document has been received:

Receiving: Ma. Theresa Mabuyo

Receipt Date and Time: April 24, 2025 06:06:42 PM

Company Information
____________________________________________________________________________

SEC Registration No.: AS93000120

Company Name: FORUM PACIFIC INC

Industry Classification: J66940

Company Type: Stock Corporation

Document Information
____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

Document ID: OST10424202583202544

Document Type: Quarterly Report

Document Code: SEC_Form_17-Q

Period Covered: March 31, 2025

Submission Type: Original Filing

Remarks: None

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

Acceptance of this document is subject to review of forms and contents



Certification 

I, Annabelle T. Abunda, Finance and Compliance Officer of Forum Pacific, Inc., with SEC registration 
number AS93000120 with principal office at 35th Fir. One Corporate Center, Dona Julia Vargas, cor. 
Mera I co Ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig City, on oath state: 

1) That on behalf of Forum Pacific, Inc., I have caused this First (1st) Quarter Report SEC Form 
17-Q 2025 to be prepared;

2) That I read and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal 
knowledge and/or based on true records;

3) That the company, Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corporation, will comply with the 
requirements set forth in SEC Notice dated June 24, 2020 for a complete and official 
submission of reports and/or documents through electronic mail; and

4) That I fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation and/or 
processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon payment of a 

filing fee. i 1/J iAPU 2£li IN 

WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hands this ______ _ day of 
___ __, 2025. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ da:ybf t 1(1 ? 2025. 

C. 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

SEC FORM 17-Q 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 11 
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 

OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES 
 

 
 
1. For the Quarter Period ended March 31, 2025 
 
 
2.  SEC Identification Number AS93000120  
 
 
3. BIR Tax Identification No. 002-155-598-000 
 
  
4. FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
 Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter  
 
 
5. Metro Manila, Philippines 
 (Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization 
 
 
6.    (SEC Use only) 
 Industry Classification Code                    
 
 
7. 35/F One Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave. cor. Meralco Ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig 
 Address of principal office 
 
 
8. Telephone No. 8706-7888  
 Registrant’s telephone number, including area code 
 
 
9. NOT APPLICABLE 
 Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report. 
 
 
10.  Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:  
 

Title of Each Class   No. of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding 
and Amount of Debt Outstanding 

   
 Common Shares – ₱1.00 par value Issued – ₱1,838,943,246 
 (Partially paid subscription – ₱1,148,264,079) 
 
 
11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange? 
 
 Yes [ x ] No. [   ] 
 
 
12. Check whether the registrant: 
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 (a)  has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17 thereunder or 
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 there under, and Sections 26 and 141 of The 
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to file such reports); 

 
 Yes  [ x  ] No  [   ] 
 
 

(b)  has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 
 
 Yes  [ x  ] No  [   ] 

 
 

13.  The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates: ₱212,230,711 
 
 
14.  Not Applicable 



   

 4 

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 
Item 1.  Financial Statements 
 
See Annex A.1 to A.5 and the accompanying notes to financial statements.  
 
Item 2. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
 
 Unaudited Income Statements 
  January – March 2025 January – March 2024 
Revenues ₱– ₱– 
Less: Costs and Expenses 609,341 642,024 
Loss from Operation (609,341) (642,024) 
Add: Other income (expenses) 52,663 (141,897) 
Loss before Income Tax (556,678) (783,921) 
Income Tax Expense – – 
Net Loss for the quarter (556,678) (783,921) 
Loss per share (₱0.0005) (₱0.0007) 

 
 Unaudited Balance Sheets 

 As of 
March 31, 2025 

As of 
March 31, 2024 

As of 
December 31, 2024 

Assets ₱259,442,162 ₱342,040,821 ₱258,355,978 

    

Liabilities 8,337,211 8,099,978 8,451,227 

Stockholders’ Equity  251,104,951 333,940,843 249,904,751 

Total Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity  ₱259,442,162 ₱342,040,821 ₱258,355,978 
 
Interim quarter ended March 31, 2025 compared with quarter ended March 31, 2024 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATION 
 
Revenues and Loss per share 
 
Since the Company is exploring new business opportunities given the volatile situation of metal and oil 
prices in the global market, the Company has no revenues for the 1st quarter of 2025 and 2024.   
 
The Company incurred losses of ₱0.6 million and ₱0.8 million for quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 
2024, respectively. Loss per share for the 1st quarter of 2025 and 2024 were ₱0.0005 and ₱0.0007, 
respectively. In line with the plan for the next twelve months, the Board continue to explore business 
opportunities to aspire for maximized potential earnings. 
 
Costs and Expenses 
 
Costs and expenses for the 1st Quarter consisted primarily of dues and subscriptions, professional fees, 
rental, storage, taxes and licenses, transportation and miscellaneous.  
 
Costs and expenses recorded for the 1st quarter of 2025 and 2024 were ₱609,341 and ₱642,024, 
respectively. Decrease by ₱32,683 or 5.09% is mainly due to a minimal decrease in payment of business 
permit for the 1st quarter. 
 
The Company has incurred other income/(expenses) amounting to ₱52,663 and (₱141,897) in the 1st 
quarter of 2025 and 2024, respectively. This is due to no provision for input tax was recorded for the 1st 
quarter of 2025 as the company assessed that recorded input tax for the quarter maybe of economic use 
for the year 2025. Also, an unrealized foreign exchange gain was recorded for the 1st quarter of 2025 of 
₱52,663 due to a lower USD to PHP conversion rate on the company’s liability to affiliate. On the other 
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hand, reported unrealized foreign loss and provision for impairment of input VAT in the 1st quarter of 
2024 were ₱75,542 and ₱66,398, respectively. 
 
 
FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Current Assets 

Current assets consist of cash in bank, input tax and other current assets. Cash in bank carries interest at 
respective bank deposit rate. On July 19, 2012, the Board of Directors approved the opening of a deposit 
account with Banco De Oro to facilitate the collection and disbursement processes of the Company. Input 
tax is stated at face value less provision for impairment, if any. Allowance for unrecoverable input tax, if 
any, is maintained by the Company at a level considered adequate to provide potential uncollectible 
portion of the claims. The Company, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status of the claims 
designed to identify those that may require provision for impairment losses.  
 
Balance of cash in bank as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 were ₱63,708 and ₱1,037,630, respectively. The 
Company funded for income tax due for the year 2023 to be paid on April 2024, thus a significant 
increase in balance as compared to 1st quarter of 2025. Budget for payment of 2024 income tax was 
funded on April 2025. During 2024, pursuant to the revenue regulations issued by the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue (RR No.3-2024) prohibiting deferral of VAT, the company don’t recognized provision for 
impairment of input VAT during the 1st quarter of 2025. Input VAT balance net of allowance for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were ₱80,897 and nil, respectively. The Company assessed 
that recorded balance of input VAT can now be used to offset against output VAT derived from 
recording interest income of advances at the 4th quarter of the year. Other current asset amounting to 
₱38,213 for both quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 pertains to cash in bank placed under 
garnishment in relation to labor case of previous employee filed against the company. 
 
Non-Current Assets  

Related Party Transaction Account 
 
The Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Such transactions 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and with no definite terms of repayment period. The Company did 
not provide nor received any guarantee on its transaction with related parties. All outstanding balances 
are to be settled through cash or offsetting. 
 

  Outstanding Balance 
Related Parties Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

The Wellex Group, Inc. Common key management ₱312,256,753 ₱308,197,754 
Forum Exploration, Inc. Common key management 171,631,076 171,631,076 
Forum GSEC 101 Ltd. Common key management (4,743,968) (4,666,933) 

 
A. Advances to The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI)  
 
On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory note amounting to ₱296,659,777 in favor of the 
Company. The term of the loan is five years maturing on December 15, 2025, bearing an interest of 2% 
per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory note amounted to ₱23,979,996 and 
₱18,046,801 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 

However, the Company entered into the following contracts with TWGI, which in return, amounts incurred 
by the former will be used to settle the outstanding advances:  
 

 The Company leases an office space in May 2014 from The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI) located at 
the 35th Floor One Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave. corner Meralco Ave., Ortigas 
Center, Pasig City. The lease is for a period of two years but renewable thereafter upon mutual 
agreement of both parties. The contract has been rented four times since then and is currently 
valid until April 30, 2026. Office space quarterly rental including storage room usage and utilities 
is ₱55,500, exclusive of VAT and withholding tax for both periods ended March 31, 2025 and 
2024. 

The Company recognized the asset as ‘right-of-use asset’ and corresponding lease liability. 
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 In April 2012, the Company has entered into a consultancy agreement with TWGI, whereby the 
latter will provide corporate planning and financial services on its various corporate functions and 
undertakings. The contract has been renewed fifth times since then and is currently valid until 
April 30, 2026. Total management fee charged to operations amounted to ₱120,000 for both 
periods ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 

The Company had provided allowance for ECL on advances to TWGI prior to agreements entered into to 
settle the outstanding advances. Allowance for ECL is evaluated annually based on historical data and 
current condition of TWGI adjusted with forward looking information. Allowance for ECL will be reversed 
once the unimpaired portion of advances is substantially collected and upon assessment by the 
management on the continuity of the existing agreements. 

The carrying amount of advances to TWGI as at March 31 as follows:  
 
 2025 2024 

Advances ₱312,256,753 ₱308,197,754 
Allowance for impairment loss (70,895,077) (49,574,308) 
Net carrying amount ₱241,361,676 ₱258,623,446 
 
The Company originally provides allowance for impairment amounting to ₱70,895,077 and ₱49,574,308 
as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, on advances to TWGI prior to agreements entered to settle 
the outstanding advances. Allowance for impairment will be reversed once the unimpaired portion of 
advances is substantially collected and upon assessment by the management on the continuity of the 
existing agreements. 
 
B. Advances to Forum Exploration Inc. (FEI) 

Advances to FEI pertain to the carrying value of exploration net assets transferred by the Company. 
Outstanding balance for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 amounted to ₱171,631,076 for 
both quarters with full valuation allowance for impairment loss. 
 
FEI is a legal and beneficial owner of 100% interest in Service Contract (SC 40), an upstream oil and gas 
contract area in the Philippines, entered into with the Philippine Government through the Department of 
Energy (DOE). Annual gas production from field on SC 40 totaled 41.09 million standard cubic feet 
(MMSCF) and 78.66 MMSCF since the start of production in 2012. 
 
In SC 40 (North Cebu), which Forum operates through its 66.67% subsidiary, Forum Exploration, Inc. 
(“FEI”), conducted a land gravity survey over the Libertad and Dalingding areas in Bogo City and 
Daanbantayan Municipality, respectively. The gravity survey aimed to further delineate the carbonate 
bodies detected in the said areas by the initial 3D gravity modelling exercise.  
 
In June 2022, FEI contracted a drilling consultant to prepare drilling programs and budgets for two (2) 
wells, one of which is located in the Dalingding Prospect. FEI's re-evaluation of the prospect concluded 
that the Dalingding-1 well, drilled in 1996, did not reach the Barili target, which is currently estimated to be 
at 1,830 feet, or 480 feet below the well's final depth. A new well is proposed to be drilled to a depth of 
2,760 feet to reach the Barili Limestone.  
 
An independent technical evaluation involving a review of available data, project risking, and project 
economics of the Dalingding Prospect started in the first quarter of 2023. The results indicate that 
deterministic and probabilistic volumetric estimates for the prospect show mean resources of 10 billion 
cubic feet (bcf) for a Gas Case and 3.5 MMBO for an Oil Case. The study was completed in March 2024.  
 
In early 2024, the DOE approved FEI's proposal to conduct a magnetotelluric (MT) survey to further 
evaluate the Dalingding Prospect. The survey aimed to define the top of the carbonate buildup and help 
determine its depth from surface.  
 
MT equipment testing and data acquisition in Daanbantayan, Cebu commenced on June 14, 2024, and 
was completed on September 2, 2024. A total of 30 stations were acquired on two (2) parallel lines 
oriented in a Northwest-Southeast direction, and 20 stations on one (1) perpendicular line oriented in a 
Northeast-Southwest direction.  
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The MT survey set-up consisted of four (4) electric field probes buried in north, east, west, and south 
directions, connected to a car battery-powered ADU-07e (recording unit) via a 20-50m cable. Daily data 
acquisition ran at one (1) station per day for an average of six (6) hours and 46 minutes. A quick quality 
control (QC) check was conducted at the end of the day to identify any potential issues or errors in the 
acquired data and to pinpoint stations that require resurveying.  

The initial results of the MT data processing and interpretation were presented by FEI's consultant on 
October 31, 2024. It was found that, while the reef trap structure was not well imaged, the average top 
depth structure identified agrees with previous studies. The data, however, will have to undergo further 
processing due to a high amount of cultural noise. Once completed, the information obtained will be 
correlated with existing seismic, gravity, magnetic, and well data in the area and will also be used to 
refine the drilling program for the Dalingding Prospect. The final report by the consultant is expected by 
late February 2025 and will determine how to use such data moving forward. 

On December 23, 2024, the proposed WP&B for 2025 was submitted to the DOE. It has a firm program 
that includes the continuation and finalization of the MT survey data processing and interpretation, and 
the technical re-evaluation of the Dalingding prospect, wherein the MT data will be integrated to existing 
geologic, geophysical, and well data. 
 
The Company has outstanding advances to FEI pertaining to the value of exploration assets 
transferred by the Company as follows:  

 2025 2024 
Advances ₱171,631,076 ₱171,631,076 
Allowance for impairment loss (171,631,076) (171,631,076) 
Net carrying amount ₱– ₱– 

 
The basis of providing full allowance for impairment loss on these advances was FEI’s assessment 
that the value of exploration assets was already utilized in previous drilling and exploration activities 
done by FEI. In the event that these exploration assets will be converted into commercial producing 
units, a reversal of allowance for impairment will be made and an arrangement for collection of this 
advances will be discussed. The Company remains positive on FEI’s success on its exploration and 
future development work in providing the viability of its oil properties to produce oil in commercial 
quantities.  

As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, FEI has not yet returned the value of the exploration assets that the 
Company transferred.  
 
C. Advances from FORUM GSEC 101 Ltd. (Forum Exploration, Inc Ltd) 

The Company received USD denominated cash advances from Forum (FEI), Ltd. amounted to $82,922 
with no definite terms of payment. Outstanding balance, in PHP denominated amount as at March 31, 
2025 and 2024 is ₱4,743,968 and ₱4,666,934 respectively. 
 
Financial Assets at FVOCI (net) 
 
Financial Assets at FVOCI as at March 31 consist of: 
 
 2025 2024 
Unquoted shares 
Balance at beginning and end of the quarter ₱65,711,573 ₱65,711,573 
Unrealized fair value loss (62,604,073) – 
 3,107,500 65,711,573 
Quoted shares 
Cost 7,529,480 7,529,480 
Net unrealized fair value gain 7,027,520 9,035,383 
 14,557,000 16,564,863 
 ₱17,664,500 ₱82,276,436 

 
Investment in unquoted shares of stock represents ownership of the Company in Forum Exploration, Inc. 
(FEI) and Taguig Lake City Development Corporation (TLCDC). These investments are classified as 
financial assets at FVOCI as the Company does not participate in the financial and operating policy of the 
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investee which manifest control, joint control or significant influence. The Company believes that the 
carrying amount of these unquoted shares of stock approximates fair value.   

Investment in quoted shares of stock represents ownership investment in Philippine Estates Corporation 
(PHES), a publicly listed Company. The fair value of these shares has been determined directly by 
reference to published prices in the active market 
 
The Company’s financial assets at FVOCI as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are not held as collateral for 
its financial liabilities. 
 
Right-Of-Use Asset (net) 

Right-of-use asset are the asset that represents lessee’s right to use an asset over the lease term. The 
carrying amount of right-of-use asset is ₱181,957 and ₱47,514 as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, 
respectively or a decrease by ₱134,443 or 282.95% due to renewal of lease contract.  
 
The recognition of right-of-use asset has a corresponding lease liability. The present value of the lease 
liability – current amounted to ₱137,908 and ₱48,323 in March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, with an 
increase by ₱89,585 or 185.39% and lease liability – noncurrent amounting to ₱46,930 and nil in March 
31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The right-of-use of asset is nearing its end of use term with option to 
renew for another 3 years. 

Based in the impairment review of the Company’s right-of-use asset, the Company believes that there 
is no indication of impairment on its right-of-use asset as at March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
Remuneration to key management personnel 

With the Company’s tight cash position, management decided to suspend any form of compensation 
given to key management personnel for the periods ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.  
 
Others 

The administrative function of the Company is performed by its related party, TWGI. 
 
Current liabilities 
 
This is primarily consisting of accounts payable and other current liabilities (including payable for retainer 
fees of legal counsels, quarterly website maintenance, accrued expenses, withholding taxes payable and 
deferred output VAT), lease liability – current and income tax payable. Total outstanding balance as at 
March 31, 2025 and 2024 amounted to ₱3,500,824 and ₱3,421,166, respectively or an increase by 
₱79,658 or 2.33%. This is main mainly due net effect of increase in accounts payable by ₱158,638, 
decrease in income tax payable by ₱54,063, decrease in accrued expense by ₱114,500 and decrease in 
other current liabilities by ₱69,733. 
 
The Top five (5) Key Performance Indicators are: 
 
1. Advances to Related Parties – currently, The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), one of the company’s major 

stockholders, is funding all operational expenses of the Company. Total advances added/(deducted) 
as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 are (₱725,725) and (₱1,772,820), respectively. 

 
2. Current Ratios – current assets against the current liabilities of the Company. It measures the 

Company’s ability to pay short-term obligations. Current Ratio for the 1st Quarter of 2025 and 2024 
are 5.36%% and 31.61%, respectively. 

 
3. Cash Ratio – the most conservative liquidity ratio. It excludes all current assets except the most liquid 

– cash and cash equivalents.  It measures the amount of cash and cash equivalents there are in the 
current assets to cover current liabilities. The cash ratio of the company for the 1st Quarter of 2025 
and 2024 are 1.82% and 30.33%, respectively. 

4. Debt ratio - it is one of the financial leverage ratios which measure the extent to which the firm is 
using long term debt. Formula is total debt divided by total assets. Debt ratio for the 1st Quarter of 
2025 and 2024 are 3.21% and 2.37%, respectively. 
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5. Debt-to-equity ratio - The formula is total debt divided by total equity. It indicates what proportion of 
equity and debt that the Company is using to finance its assets. The debt to equity ratio for the 1st 
Quarter of 2025 and 2024 are 3.32% and 2.43%, respectively. 

 
Indicator 2025 2024 

Advances ratio 0.23% 0.58% 
Current ratio 5.36% 31.61% 
Cash ratio 1.82% 30.33% 
Debt ratio 3.21% 2.37% 
Debt-to-equity ratio 3.32% 2.43% 

 
 

 (i) Summary of Material Trends, Events and Uncertainties  
 
The shares of Forum Pacific, Inc. are listed and traded in Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The company 
was registered to engage in investing, purchasing and acquiring assets of any kind and description with 
the secondary purpose of engaging in the exploration, development and production of petroleum and 
related products, as well as other mineral and chemical substances. It is presently a holding company and 
owning shares of stocks of an exploration company. 
 
Business Plans 
 
To address the foregoing matters that may raise doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, the shareholders of the Company have committed in principle to provide full financial support to 
the Company in order to sustain its operations, meet the working capital requirements and settle 
obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Company has been reviewing outstanding receivables and advances to affiliates and has designed 
collection programs to improve the Company’s financial status.  The board continues to evaluate calling 
for the remaining stock subscription as source of funds for future projects, with the aim of utilizing this 
process as a tool to fund capital intensive endeavors.  The officers and major stockholders of the 
Company have committed to provide full financial support to the Company once its projects will 
materialize and a definite project is in place.  The Company estimates that it will satisfy its capital funding 
within two (2) years from the finalization and approval of such business project plans. 
 
The Company will prioritize the improvement of its financial position and exploring new business 
opportunities in oil and gas exploration and extraction, order to maintain strong and healthy cash flows, 
and at the same time, aspire for maximized potential earnings. However, the prospects are still 
undetermined, given the geo-political issues hounding territorial encroachment by the Chinese at the 
West Philippine Sea. 
 
The management is still evaluating potential buyers who expressed interest to buy out the Company’s 
remaining 33.33% capital stock investment in Forum Exploration, Inc. (FEI), a subsidiary of Pangilinan-led 
Forum Energy Plc and the project operator for Libertad Gas Field or Service Contract (SC40).  Talks, 
however, with the three (3) interested groups are still on hold at the moment, pending clarification of 
several commercial issues. 
 
FEI has been keen on reexamining the oil and gas prospects for SC40, and a new series for drilling 
programs are currently underway in Cebu in an effort to refine drilling data and improving on previous 
information already gathered in the previous depth targets. The Company is confident that the new drilling 
programs will bear good fruit. 
 
Since the Company is affiliated with group of mining companies, projects in the mining sector are being 
re-evaluated at the moment. Despite the stringent evaluations being conducted by the Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) for new mining applications, the government has also 
indicated that a revival of the industry is forthcoming, especially as a means to address the economic 
slowdown caused by the pandemic.  
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Business Focus for the Coming Year 

The investment made during 2017 in Taguig Lake City Development Corporation, a corporation engaged 
in the real estate industry, is starting to show some results, now that the Laguna Lake Development 
Authority has responded positively to this Company’s proposals to rehabilitate the Laguna de Bay. The 
Company will continue to support the progress of TLCDC in this regard. 
 
The Company will further scan for business target projects, and welcome other business opportunities 
from different industries apart from oil and gas and mineral exploration. As mentioned above, the 
management is currently discussing on how the Company will proceed with its remaining 33.33% capital 
stock investment in Forum Exploration, Inc., specifically whether to sell its interest or enter into 
partnership with potential buyers. 
 
On the other hand, given the growing requirements for power, the Company is actively looking into the 
traditional energy business, concentrating on cheap and consistent coal power for the country’s base 
loads.  Demand and supply studies, as well as site feasibility analysis and the selection of green and 
clean coal technologies are being conducted by select engineering advisers of the Company.  On the 
other hand, the Company is also considering investing into potential renewable energy sources like solar 
power, ethane, biofuels, hydro, wind and geothermal energy and nuclear power. The management is also 
conducting research and feasibility studies on various renewable projects, albeit utilizing more stringent 
investment hurdles, given that renewable energy projects produce power at higher pricing levels as 
compared to traditional energy sources. 
 
The Company’s management believes that such financial support and the discussed management plans 
are sufficient to provide the Company the ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
(ii) Events that will Trigger Direct of Contingent Financial Obligation 
 
Since the Forum Pacific, Inc. are still looking a strategic partner to enhance the development of the 
Company specially in exploration business, the Company have no events that will trigger direct or 
contingent financial obligation that is material to Forum Pacific, Inc. including any default or 
acceleration of an obligation. 
 
(iii) Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, Arrangements, Obligations 
 
There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent 
obligations), and other relationships of Forum Pacific, Inc. with unconsolidated entities or other 
persons created during the reporting period. 
 
(iv) Any Known Trends, Events of Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity) 
 
The Company is mainly exposed to liquidity risk through its maturing liabilities. The Company has a policy 
of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing liabilities will be adequately met. 
  
The Company manages liquidity risk through continuous collection of advances to related parties which is 
considered as cash inflow to finance its operation. The Company continuously monitoring forecast and 
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of liabilities. 
 
The details of the maturity analysis of the Company’s liabilities are as follows: 
 
 

March 31, 2025 
 

Total 
On 

demand 
Less than 3 

months 
3-12 

months 
1-5 years 

Advances from related parties  ₱4,743,968 ₱ ₱ ₱ ₱4,743,968 
Lease liability 137,908   184,838 – 
Accounts payable and other 
     liabilities 305,638   305,638  

 ₱5,187,514 ₱ ₱ ₱443,546 ₱4,743,968 
*excluding government liabilities 
 



   

 11 

March 31, 2024 
 

Total On demand 
Less than 3 

months 
3-12 

months 
1-5 years 

Advances from related parties  ₱4,666,933 ₱ ₱ ₱ ₱4,666,933 
Lease liability 48,323   48,323 – 
Accounts payable and other 
     liabilities 261,500   261,500  

 ₱4,976,756 ₱ ₱ ₱309,823 ₱4,666,933 
*excluding government liabilities 
 
(v) Significant Element of Income or Loss That Did Not Arise from Continuing Operation 
 
PFRS 16, Leases. This new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model to be applied to all 
leases, whilst substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in PAS 17 Leases. 
Lessees recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a 
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments for all leases with a term of more than 
twelve (12) months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Whereas, lessors continue to classify 
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. The 
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier application 
permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.  
 
The Company adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, with recognition of 
transitional adjustments on deficit as at January 1, 2019, without restatement of comparative figures.  
 
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9, Financial Instruments replaces PAS 39 Financial 
Instruments” Recognition and Measurement, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for 
financial instruments: classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The standard 
requires all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of PAS 39 to be subsequently measured 
at amortized cost or at fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model 
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are 
solely for payments of principal and interest on the outstanding balance are generally measured at 
amortized cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other debts investments and equity 
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. For financial 
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value 
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other 
comprehensive income would create or increase an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair 
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
The Company has adopted the PFRS 9 Financial Instruments from January 1, 2018 and resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjusted amounts recognized in the financial statements. The 
comparative figures have been restated to comply with the transitional provisions in PFRS 9. 
 
On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory note amounting to ₱296,659,777 which 
superseded the previous promissory note. The term of the loan is five years maturing on December 15, 
2025, bearing an interest of 2% per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory note 
amounted to ₱23,979,996 and ₱18,046,801 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 
 
(vi) Material Changes on Line Items in Financial Statements 
 
Material changes on line items in financial statements are presented under the captions “Financial 
Condition” and “Results of Operation” above, and see attached Notes to Financial Statements.  
 
(vii) Effect of Seasonal Changes in the Financial Condition or Results of Operations 
 
The financial condition or results of operations is not affected by any seasonal change. 
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

 
 
Market Information 
The principal market of Forum Pacific, Inc. common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 
where it was listed on December 19, 1994. The high and low sales prices by quarter for the last 3 years 
are as follows: 
 

  High Low 
2025 First Quarter 0.220     0.220 
2024 First Quarter 0.210 0.210 

 Second Quarter 0.250 0.250 
 Third Quarter 0.201 0.201 
 Fourth Quarter 0.210 0.210 

2023 First Quarter 0.230 0.230 
 Second Quarter 0.206 0.205 
 Third Quarter 0.212 0.200 
 Fourth Quarter 0.200 0.200 

2022 First Quarter 0.290 0.206 
 Second Quarter 0.208 0.206 

 Third Quarter 0.270 0.204 
 Fourth Quarter 0.230 0.230 

 
The latest high, low and close market price is ₱0.22, ₱0.22 and ₱0.22, respectively per share as of April 
8, 2025, respectively.  
 
Holders 
The number of shareholders of record as of March 31, 2025 was 856. Common shares issued and 
subscribed were 1,838,943,246. 
 

List of Top 20 Stockholders  
March 31, 2025 

 

  NAME 
NO. SHARES 

HELD 
% to TOTAL 

1 INTERNATIONAL POLYMER CORPORATION 496,887,494 26.501  
2 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION 442,195,274 23.584 
3 THE WELLEX GROUP, INC. 376,950,000 20.104  
4 E.F. DURKEE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 77,838,563 4.151  
5 INTRA-INVEST SEC., INC. 48,159,000 2.568  
6 METROPOLITAN MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 30,000,000 1.600  
7 JUANITO C. UY 22,625,001 1.207  
8 PACRIM ENERGY N.L. 21,000,000 1.120  
9 SAPPHIRE SECURITIES INC. 19,433,500 1.036  

10 BENITO ONG AND/OR ZITA Y. ONG 18,000,000 0.960  
11 NESTOR S. MANGIO 12,500,000 0.667  
12 A & A SECURITIES, INC. 11,911,320 0.635  
13 MARK SECURITIES CORPORATION 10,772,800 0.575  
14 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINO) 10,510,050 0.561 
15 GLOBALINKS SEC & STOCKS, INC. A/C # CWUSO001 9,400,000 0.501  
16 BELSON SECURITIES, INC. 9,200,000 0.491  
17 WEALTH SECURITIES, INC. 8,240,000 0.439  
18 RUBEN M. GAN 7,610,000 0.406  
19 LI CHIH-HUI 6,860,000 0.379 
20 DAVID GO SECURITIES CORPORATION 6,880,000 0.367  
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FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
   

Annex A.1 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

  
    

     

  
Unaudited Unaudited Audited  

    
March 31, 

2025 
March 31,  

2024 
December 31, 

2024 
Current Assets 

    
Cash 5 ₱63,708 ₱1,037,631 ₱91,574 
Prepayments and other current assets 6 124,111 43,713              41,213  
  

 
187,819 1,081,344 132,787  

  
 

  
Non-current Assets 

 
 

  
Advances to related parties – net 11 241,361,676 258,623,446 242,087,403  
Financial asset at FVOCI  7 17,664,500 82,276,436 15,907,621  
Right-of-Use Asset (net) 8 181,957 47,514 181,957  
Deferred Tax Asset (net) 

 
46,210 12,081 46,210  

  
 

259,254,343 340,959,477 258,223,191  
TOTAL ASSETS 

 
259,442,162 342,040,821 258,355,978  

     
Current Liabilities 

    
Accounts payable and other current 
liabilities 

 
9 

 
2,478,580 

 
2,434,443 

          
 2,539,941 

Lease Liability 
 

137,908 48,323 137,908  
Income Tax Payable  884,336 938,400 884,336 
  

 
3,500,824 3,421,166 3,562,185  

  
 

  
Non-current Liabilities 

 
 

  
Advances from related parties 11 4,743,968 4,666,934 4,796,623 
Lease Liability (net of current portion)  46,930 – 46,930 
Deferred Tax Liability 

 
45,489 11,878 45,489  

  4,836,387 4,678,812 4,889,042 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

 
8,337,211 8,099,978 8,451,227        

     
EQUITY 

    
 Capital stock 

 
1,207,543,621 1,207,543,621 1,207,543,621 

 Treasury shares  
 

(36,056,750) (36,056,750) (36,056,750) 
Unrealized fair value gain on financial  
     assets at FVOCI  

 
(55,576,554) 

 
9,035,382 

 
(57,333,432) 

 Deficit 
 

(864,805,366) (846,581,410) (864,248,688) 
TOTAL EQUITY 

 
251,104,951 333,940,843 249,904,751 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
 

₱259,442,162 ₱342,040,821 ₱258,355,978 
(The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

 15 

FORUM PACIFIC, INC.  Annex A.2 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

   

   

 Unaudited Unaudited 
January - March 

 2025 
January - March 

 2024 

  
 

Revenues ₱– ₱– 

 
  

Costs and expenses (Note 12) 609,341 642,024 

 
  

Operating loss (609,341) (642,024) 

 
  

Other income/(expenses) (Note 13) 52,663 (141,897) 

 
  

NET LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (556,678) (783,921) 

 
  

LOSS PER SHARE (Note 15) (₱0.0005) (₱0.0007) 
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FORUM PACIFIC, INC. Annex A.3 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
        
    

Unaudited 
January - March 

2025 

Unaudited 
January - March 

2024 

Audited 
December 31, 

2024   

Capital stock ₱1,207,543,621  ₱1,207,543,621  ₱1,207,543,621  
  

  
Treasury shares (36,056,750)  (36,056,750)  (36,056,750) 

 
  

Unrealized fair value gain on financial 
assets at FVOCI  

 
(55,576,554) 

 
9,035,382 

 
(57,333,432) 

 
  

Deficit - beginning (864,248,688) (845,797,489) (845,797,489) 
Net income (loss) for the period (556,678)  (783,921) (18,451,199) 
Deficit - ending (864,805,366)  (846,581,410) (864,248,688) 
    
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ₱251,104,951 ₱333,940,843 ₱249,904,751 
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements) 
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FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
 

Annex A.4 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

    
 

     

 
Unaudited Unaudited Audited 

 

January- 
March 

January- 
March 

December  
31,  

2024 2025 2024 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

  
Income (Loss) before tax 

 
(₱556,678) (₱783,921) (₱17,567,381)

Adjustments for income tax: 
   

 
Provision for (recovery of )impairment of input tax 6 – 66,394 (508,246) 
Provision for impairment on advances to related parties  – – 21,320,767 
Depreciation 12 – –    138,490 
Finance Cost 11 – – 13,581 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 11 (52,663)  75,542 205,232 
Interest Income 5,11 (8)  (43)  (5,933,293) 

Operating loss before working capital changes   (609,349) (642,024) (2,330,850) 
Increase (Decrease) in prepayments and other  
current assets   

 
(82,898) 

 
(71,899)  

 
505,246 

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and  
other liabilities 

  
 

(61,361) 
  

(117,150)  
 

(11,652) 
Cash used in operations 

 
(753,608)  (831,073)  (1,837,256) 

Income tax paid  – – (938,400) 
Interest Received 

 
8                   43  98 

Net cash used in operating activities   (753,600) (831,030) (2,775,558) 

 
 

 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY 
 

 
 

 
Collection of advances to related parties 11 725,734 1,772,820 2,921,291 
Net cash provided by investing activity   725,734 1,772,820 2,921,291 

  
 

 
 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY 
 

 
 

 
Payment of lease liability 11 – – (150,000) 
Net cash used in financing activity   – –   (150,000) 

  
 

 
 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
 

(27,866)            941,790  (4,267) 
CASH  

 
 

 
 

At beginning of the period 5 91,574 95,841  95,841 
At end of the period             ₱63,708  ₱1,037,631  ₱91,574 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements) 
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Annex A.5 
 

FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

March 31, 2025 
 
 
1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
Forum Pacific, Inc. (the “Company”), formerly known as Cophil Exploration, Inc., was incorporated in the 
Philippines and was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 8, 1993 
primarily to engage in investing, purchasing and acquiring assets of any kind and description with the 
secondary purpose of engaging in the exploration, development and production of petroleum and related 
products as well as other mineral and chemical substance. 
 
The Company’s shares are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Its registered office 
address is located at 35th Floor, One Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Avenue corner Meralco 
Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. 
 
 
2.  MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION AND BUSINESS PLANS  
 
Management’s Assessment of the Going Concern Assumption 
 
The nature of the Company’s operations requires it to spend significant amount of funds to support 
exploration programs and operating expenses for it to operate profitably in the future. The Company 
incurred losses amounting to ₱556,678 and ₱783,921 on March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The 
Company had accumulated a deficit of ₱864,805,366 and ₱846,581,410 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 
respectively. Furthermore, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by ₱3,313,005 
and ₱2,339,822 for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. These conditions indicate 
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 
going concern and, therefore, the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities in the normal course of business. Notwithstanding these conditions, management believes that 
the Company will be able to meet all its outstanding obligations and continue to operate as a going 
concern. 

To continue as going concern, the officers and major stockholders of the Company has committed to 
provide full financial support to the Company to sustain its operations, meet the working capital 
requirements and settle obligations as they fall due. 
 
Business Plans 
 
The Company is cautiously hopeful that the business environment will start to grow in the foreseeable 
future. For the year 2025, the Company plans to undertake the following: 
 
 Continuously support the progress of Taguig Lake City Development Corporation (TLCDC), on its 

prospect projects in relation. The Company observed a positive response from Laguna Lake 
Development Authority on the TLCDC’s proposals to rehabilitate Laguna De Day. 

 Further scan for business target projects, and welcome other business opportunities from different 
industries apart from oil and gas and mineral exploration. 

 Evaluate potential buyers to buy out investment with Forum Exploration Inc. or enter into partnership 
with potential buyers. 

 Explore opportunities in the traditional energy business, concentrating on cheap and consistent coal 
power for the country’s base loads. 

 Conduct demand and supply studies, as well as feasibility analysis and the selection of green and 
clean coal technologies are being conducted by select engineering advisers of the Company. 

 Consider investing into potential renewable energy sources like solar power, ethane, biofuels, hydro, 
wind and geothermal energy and nuclear power. 
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 Conduct research and feasibility studies on various renewable projects, although I would require more 
stringent investment hurdles. Renewable energy projects produce power at higher pricing levels as 
compared to traditional energy sources. 

 
The Company’s management believes that such financial support and the discussed management plans 
are sufficient to provide the Company the ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
 
3.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
 
The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements are 
summarized below and in the succeeding pages. The policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine 
Accounting Standards (PAS), interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing 
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 
which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the 
SEC. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the Company’s 
financial assets at FVOCI, which are stated at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair 
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. 
 
Functional and Presentation Currency 
 
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (₱), the Company’s functional currency. All 
amounts are rounded to the nearest peso except when otherwise indicated. 
 
Current and Non-Current Classification 
 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is: 
 
•  expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
•  held primarily for the purpose of trading. 
•  expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
•  cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when: 
 
•  it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
•  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading: 
•  it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period. 
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liability are classified as non-current assets and non-current 
liabilities, respectively. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 
 
The Company adopted for the first time the following amendments to PFRS, which are mandatorily 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. 
 
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent (Amendments to PAS 1). The narrow-scope 
amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as either 
current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. 
Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g. the 
receipt of a waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what PAS 1 means when it 
refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, 
particularly for entities that previously considered management’s intentions to determine classification and 
for some liabilities that can be converted into equity. The amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with earlier application permitted. 
 
The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the statements of 
financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, 
or the information disclosed about those items. 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to PAS 1). The amendment clarifies how conditions 
with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the classification of 
liability. Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect 
the classification of a liability as either current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to disclose 
information in the notes that enable users of financial statements to understand the risk that non-current 
liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve months. The amendments are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. 
 
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to PFRS 16). The amendment clarifies the how a 
seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in 
PFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments to PFRS 16 specify that, in subsequently 
measuring the lease liability, the seller-lessee determines ‘lease payments’ and ‘revised lease payments’ 
in a way that does not result in the seller-lessee recognizing any amount of the gain or loss that relates to 
the right of use it retains. The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognised by the seller-lessee 
relating to the partial or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may 
have recognised a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease 
liability (for example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the general 
requirements in PFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback that includes 
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate. The amendments are effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2024. 
 
Cash Flow Statements and PFRS 7 (Amendments), Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Supplier 
Finance Arrangements. The amendment notes that arrangements that are solely credit enhancements for 
the entity or instruments used by the entity to settle directly with a supplier the amounts owed are not 
supplier finance arrangements. The entities will have to disclose in the notes information that enables 
users of the financial statements to assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities 
and cash flows and understand its effect on exposure to liquidity risk and how the entity may be affected if 
the arrangements were no longer available. 
 
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with earlier 
application permitted. 
 
The amendments contain specific transition provisions for the first annual reporting period in which the 
group applies the amendments. Under the transitional provisions an entity is not required to disclose: 
 

 comparative information for any reporting periods presented before the beginning of the annual 
reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. 
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 the information otherwise required by PAS as at the beginning of the annual reporting period in 
which the entity first applies those amendments. 

 
 
New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective 
Subsequent to January 1, 2024 
 
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates – Lack of Exchangeability. The amendment specifies 
that a currency is exchangeable when an entity can exchange that currency for the other currency 
through markets or exchange mechanisms that create enforceable rights and obligations without undue 
delay at measurement date and for a specified purpose while a currency is not exchangeable into other 
currency if an entity can only obtain an insignificant amount of the other currency. When a currency is not 
exchangeable, an entity estimates the spot exchange rate as the rate that would have applied to an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and that would faithfully reflect 
the economic conditions. The amendment requires the disclosures of additional information when a 
currency is not exchangeable. 
 
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with earlier 
application permitted. 
 
PFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements. This standard supersedes PAS 1, 
Presentation of Financial Statements, and sets out requirements for the presentation and disclosure of 
information in general purpose financial statements (financial statements) to help ensure they provide 
relevant information that faithfully represents an entity’s assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. 
The standard requires an entity to clearly identify the financial statements, which must be distinguished 
from other information in the same published document, as well as each primary financial statement and 
the notes to the financial statements. In addition, the following information must be displayed prominently, 
and repeated as necessary: 

 the name of the reporting entity and any change in the name 
 whether the financial statements are a group of entities or an individual entity 
 information about the reporting period 
 the presentation currency (as defined by PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 

Rates) 
 the level of rounding used (e.g., thousands, millions). 

 
Retrospective application of the standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods starting from January 
1, 2027 onwards but earlier application is permitted provided that this fact is disclosed. 
 
PFRS 18 supersedes PAS 1, carrying forward many of the requirements in PAS 1 unchanged and 
complementing them with new requirements with movements on certain paragraphs into PAS 8 and 
PFRS 7. Furthermore, there were also minor amendments to PAS 7 and PAS 33 earnings per share. The 
new standard introduces new requirements to: 

 present specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss 
 provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in the notes to the 

financial statements 
 improve aggregation and disaggregation. 

 
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, with earlier 
application permitted. The amendments to PAS 7 and PAS 33, as well as the revised IAS 8 and IFRS 7, 
become effective when an entity applies PFRS 18. 
 
The Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the 
Company’s financial statements in future periods. 
 
PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures. The standard specifies the disclosure 
requirements an eligible subsidiary is permitted to apply instead of the disclosure requirements in other 
PFRS. A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced disclosures if it does not have public accountability and its 
ultimate or any intermediate. 
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A subsidiary has public accountability if its debt or equity instruments are traded in a public market or it is 
in the process of issuing such instruments for trading in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock 
exchange or an over-the-counter market, including local and regional markets), or it holds assets in a 
fiduciary capacity for a broad group of outsiders as one of its primary businesses (for example, banks, 
credit unions, insurance entities, securities brokers/dealers, mutual funds and investment banks often 
meet this second criterion). 
 
An entity electing to apply PFRS 19 applies the requirements in other PFRS, except for the disclosure 
requirements. Instead of the disclosure requirements, the entity applies the requirements in PFRS 19. 
Therefore, an entity applying PFRS 19 is not required to apply the disclosure requirements in other PFRS 
nor apply any statements about, or references to, those disclosure requirements except for certain 
exceptions. An entity is required to consider whether to provide additional disclosures when compliance 
with the specific requirements in PFRS 19 is insufficient to enable users of financial statements to 
understand the effect of transactions and other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and 
financial performance.  
 
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, with earlier 
application permitted provided that this fact is disclosed. 
 
The Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the 
Company’s financial statements in future periods. 
 
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to PFRS 9 
and PFRS 7). The amendments address matters identified during the post-implementation review of the 
classification and measurement requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The amendments 
include: 
 
a) derecognition of financial liability settled through electronic transfer - The amendments to the 

application guidance of PFRS 9 permit an entity to deem a financial liability (or part of it) that will be 
settled in cash using an electronic payment system to be discharged before the settlement date if 
specified criteria are met. An entity that elects to apply the derecognition option would be required to 
apply it to all settlements made through the same electronic payment system. 

b) classification of financial assets - The amendments provide guidance on how an entity can assess 
whether contractual cash flows of a financial asset are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, 
enhance description of the term ‘non-recourse’ and clarify the characteristics of contractually linked 
instruments that distinguish them from other transactions. 

c) disclosures - The requirements in PFRS 7 are amended for disclosures that an entity provides in 
respect of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive 
income. The amendments also require the disclosure of contractual terms that could change the timing 
or amount of contractual cash flows on the occurrence (or non-occurrence) of a contingent event that 
does not relate directly to changes in a basic lending risks and costs. 

 
The amendments also include amendments to PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 
Disclosures, which limit the disclosure requirements for qualifying subsidiaries. 
 
The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with earlier 
application permitted provided that this fact is disclosed. 
 
Annual Improvements to PFRS — Volume 11. The pronouncement comprises the following amendments: 

 PFRS 1: Hedge accounting by a first-time adopter - The amendment addresses a potential 
confusion arising from an inconsistency in wording between paragraph B6 of PFRS 1 and 
requirements for hedge accounting in PFRS 9 Financial Instruments. 

 PFRS 7: Gain or loss on derecognition - The amendment addresses a potential confusion in 
paragraph B38 of PFRS 7 arising from an obsolete reference to a paragraph that was deleted 
from the standard when PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement was issued. 

 PFRS 7: Disclosure of deferred difference between fair value and transaction price – The 
amendment addresses an inconsistency between paragraph 28 of PFRS 7 and its accompanying 
implementation guidance that arose when a consequential amendment resulting from the 
issuance of PFRS 13 was made to paragraph 28, but not to the corresponding paragraph in the 
implementation guidance. 
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 PFRS 7: Introduction and credit risk disclosures - The amendment addresses a potential 
confusion by clarifying in paragraph IG1 that the guidance does not necessarily illustrate all the 
requirements in the referenced paragraphs of PFRS 7 and by simplifying some explanations. 

 PFRS 9: Lessee derecognition of lease liabilities - The amendment addresses a potential lack of 
clarity in the application of the requirements in PFRS 9 to account for an extinguishment of a 
lessee’s lease liability that arises because paragraph 2.1(b)(ii) of PFRS 9 includes a cross- 
reference to paragraph 3.3.1, but not also to paragraph 3.3.3 of PFRS 9. 

 PFRS 9: Transaction price - The amendment addresses a potential confusion arising from a 
reference in Appendix A to PFRS 9 to the definition of ‘transaction price’ in PFRS 15 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers while term ‘transaction price’ is used in particular paragraphs of 
PFRS 9 with a meaning that is not necessarily consistent with the definition of that term in PFRS 
15. 

 PFRS 10: Determination of a ‘de facto agent’ - The amendment addresses a potential confusion 
arising from an inconsistency between paragraphs B73 and B74 of PFRS 10 related to an 
investor determining whether another party is acting on its behalf by aligning the language in both 
paragraphs. 

 PAS 7: Cost method - The amendment addresses a potential confusion in applying paragraph 37 
of IAS 7 that arises from the use of the term ‘cost method’ that is no longer defined in IFRS 
Accounting Standards. 
 

The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with earlier 
application permitted provided that this fact is disclosed. 
 
The Company has not early adopted the previously mentioned new, amended and improved accounting 
standards and interpretations. The Company continues to assess the impact of the above new, amended 
and improved accounting standards and interpretations that are effective subsequent to January 1, 2024 
on its financial statements in the period of initial application. Additional disclosures required by these 
amendments will be included in the financial statements when these amendments are adopted. 
 
Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
•  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
•  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
•  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
•  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
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•  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
 
The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for 
non-recurring measurement. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 
 
Fair value measurement disclosures of financial and non-financial assets are presented in Note 18 to the 
financial statements. 
 
“Day 1” difference 
 
When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables 
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the 
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the statements of comprehensive income unless 
it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability. In cases where use is made of data 
which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized 
in the statements of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument 
is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing 
the “Day 1” difference amount. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Initial recognition, measurement and classification 
 
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities in the statements of financial position 
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
market place are recognized on the settlement date. 
 
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration 
given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial 
instruments includes transaction costs, except for those financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVPL) where the transaction costs are charged to expenses in the period incurred. 
 
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCI and 
FVPL. The classification of financial assets depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow 
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets. The Company’s 
business model is determined at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. The Company’s business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. 
 
Financial assets at amortized cost 
 
Financial assets are measured at amortized when both of the following conditions are met: 
 
•  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and 
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•  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
After initial measurement, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the 
effective interest method less allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the 
statements of comprehensive income when the financial assets at amortized cost are derecognized, 
modified or impaired. These financial assets are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve (12) 
months from the end of reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, included under financial assets at amortized cost are the Company’s 
cash and advances to related parties (see Notes 5 and 11). 
 
Cash 
 
The Company’s cash represents cash in bank that are not legally restricted for use, which carries interest 
at respective bank deposit rate. 
 
Advances to related parties 
 
Advances to related parties represent promissory notes from TWGI and Forum Exploration Inc. (FEI) 
which represents cash advance for working capital and value of exploration of assets transferred to the 
Company. 
 
Equity instruments designated at FVOCI 
 
Upon initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income changes in the fair value of an equity investment that is not held for trading. The 
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. When the equity instrument is 
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings. Dividends on such 
investments are recognized in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when 
the dividends represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case, such gains are 
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to 
impairment assessment. These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company elected to classify irrevocably its quoted and unquoted 
equity investments under this category (see Note 7). 
 
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
 
Financial liabilities that are not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, held for 
trading, or designated at FVPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and 
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost of a 
financial liability. 
 
As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, included in financial liabilities at amortized cost are the Company’s 
accounts payable and other liabilities (excluding government liabilities), lease liability and advances from 
a related party (see Notes 9 and 11). 
 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
 
Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business from suppliers. Other current liabilities include non-trade payables, accrued expenses 
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and due to government agencies. Accounts payable and other liabilities are classified as current liabilities 
if payment is due within one year or less or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer while 
non-trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. 
Otherwise, these are presented as noncurrent liabilities. 
 
Lease liability 
 
Lease liability represents the Company’s obligation to make lease payments for all leases with a term of 
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value is effectively treated as a financial 
liability which is measured at amortized cost, using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company. 
Advances from a related party 
 
Represents cash advances from a related party for working capital requirements. 
 
Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized when: 
 
•  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
•  the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to 

pay them in full without material delay to third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or 
• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability was discharged, cancelled or 
has expired. 
 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference 
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt instruments that are 
measured at amortized cost. ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life 
of the financial asset. 
 
Credit losses are the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest 
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rate. The expected cash flows include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit 
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
 
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether the credit risk on a financial asset 
has increased significantly since initial recognition. For those credit exposures for which there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is measured at an amount 
equal to the lifetime ECL. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. 
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to 
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
period. 
 
For advances to related parties, the Company applies a general approach in calculating ECL. The 
Company recognizes a loss allowance using the management’s adopted policy on ECL at the end of 
each reporting period. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on 
the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment, including time value of money where appropriate. 
 
When the credit risk on financial instruments for which lifetime ECL have been recognized subsequently 
improves, and the requirement for recognizing lifetime ECL is no longer met, the loss allowance is 
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting period, except for assets for 
which simplified approach was used. 
 
The Company recognizes impairment loss (reversals) in profit or loss for all financial assets with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for 
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized 
in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the 
statements of financial position. 
 
Significant increase in credit risk 
 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the end 
of reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial 
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes 
the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from economic 
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar 
organizations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic 
information that relate to the Company’s core operations. 
 
In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition: 
 
•  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or 

internal credit rating; 
• significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, 

e.g. the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortized cost; 
•  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected 

to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; 
•  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; 
•  significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; 
•  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological 

environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt 
obligations. 
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are one day 
past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 
 
Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit 
risk at the end of reporting period. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: 
 
• the financial instrument has a low risk of default; 
•  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and 
•  adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, 

reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. 
 
The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating 
of investment grade in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not 
available, the asset has an internal rating of performing. Performing means that the counterparty has a 
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts. 
 
The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable 
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 
 
When the credit risk on financial instruments for which lifetime ECL have been recognized subsequently 
improves, and the requirement for recognizing lifetime ECL is no longer met, the loss allowance is 
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting period, except for assets for 
which simplified approach was used. 
 
The Company recognizes impairment loss (reversals) in statements of comprehensive income for all 
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance 
account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss 
allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the 
financial asset in the statements of financial position. 
 
Definition of default 
 
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk 
management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the 
following criteria are generally not recoverable: 
 
•  when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or 
•  information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely 

to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by 
the Parent Company). 

 
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial 
asset is more than one year past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to 
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. 
 
Credit-impaired financial assets 
 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events: 
 
•  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; 
•  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event; 
•  the lenders of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial 

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lenders would not otherwise consider; 
•  it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
•  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties. 
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Write-off policy 
 
The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed 
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables and 
contract assets, when the amounts are over five years past due, whichever occurs sooner. 
 
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery 
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in 
profit or loss. 
 
Input Tax 
 
Input tax pertains to indirect tax paid by the Company on its local purchase of goods and services from a 
value-added tax (VAT)-registered person. Input tax is deducted against output tax in arriving at the VAT 
due and payable. 
 
The Company’s input tax is initially recognized at face value and subsequently measured at face value 
less provision for impairment, if any. Allowance for unrecoverable input tax, if any, are maintained by the 
Company at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible portion of the claims. The 
Company, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status of the claims designed to identify those 
that may require provision for impairment loss. 
 
Right-of-use Asset 
 
Right-of-use asset represents lessee’s right to use an asset over the lease term. 
 
The Company recognizes right-of-use asset at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost which includes the 
amount of lease liability recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. 
 
Right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. 
 
Right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term of two years which is shorter 
than its estimated useful life. 
 
When right-of-use are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any 
resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations. 
 
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any of its assets may 
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of 
allocation can be identified, assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
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If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been 
recognized. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income, unless the relevant asset is carried 
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
increase. 
 
Retirement Benefits 
 
The Company does not provide any retirement benefits because it does not have any employee. The 
Company’s administrative functions are performed by TWGI. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
at reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. Deferred income tax is 
recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
 
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; 
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither 
accounting nor taxable income. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws, in the period 
the temporary difference is expected to be recovered or settled, that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted as at reporting period. 
 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each reporting date the 
Company reassess the need to recognize previously unrecognized deferred income tax asset. 
 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carrying forward 
benefits of unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular 
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is 
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, carrying forward benefits of unused tax credits from excess of MCIT over RCIT and unused 
NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences. 
 
The Company reassesses at each reporting date the need to recognize a previously unrecognized 
deferred income tax asset. 
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax asset against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different 
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. 
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Leases 
 
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. 
 
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
 
The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option. 
 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset has been reduced to zero. 
 
The Company elects to apply the practical expedient not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value 
assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognized as an expense on a straightline 
basis over the lease term. 
 
Related Parties and Related Party Transactions 
 
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between related parties, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. 
 
Related party relationship exists when: (a) a person or a close member of that person’s family has control 
or joint control, has significant influence or is a member of the key management personnel of the 
reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity; and (b) when any of the following conditions apply: (i) 
the entity and the Company are members of the same group; (ii) one entity is an associate or joint 
venture of the other entity; (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; (iv) one entity is a 
joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party; (v) the entity is a post-
employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company; (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly 
controlled by a person as identified in (a) above; (vii) the entity or any member of a group of which it is 
part, provides key management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company; (viii) 
a person identified in (a) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 
management personnel of the entity or of a parent of the entity. 
 
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 
relationships, and not merely the legal form. 
 
Equity 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are measured (initial and subsequent) at the fair value of 
the cash or other resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity 
instruments. If payment is deferred and time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a 
present value basis. 
 
Capital stock represents the par value of shares that have been issued at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Subscribed capital stock represents the par value of the subscribed shares. 
 
Subscription receivables represent par value of the shares subscribed but the Company has not yet 
received the payments from the subscriber. 
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Treasury shares represent own equity instruments reacquired, the amount of the consideration paid, 
including directly attributable cost, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a reduction from equity. No gain 
or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own 
equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is 
recognized as Additional paid-in capital. Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullified for the 
Company and no dividends are allocated to them respectively. 
 
When the shares are retired, the capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost 
over par value upon retirement is debited to Additional paid-in capital to the extent of the specific or 
average additional paid-in capital when the shares were issued and to retained earnings for the remaining 
balance. 
 
Unrealized fair value gain on financial assets at FVOCI represents accumulated gains from increase in 
the market value of financial assets at FVOCI. 
 
Deficit includes all current and prior period accumulated losses as disclosed in the statements of 
comprehensive income. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the 
normal course of business. 
 
Interest income is recognized as it accrues (using the effective interest method i.e., the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset). 
 
Cost and Expense Recognition 
 
Cost and expenses are recognized in statements of comprehensive income when decrease in future 
economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be 
measured reliably. Expenses are recognized in statements of comprehensive income: on the basis of a 
direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of 
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several 
accounting periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or 
immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, 
future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statements of financial 
position as an asset. 
 
Expenses in the statements of comprehensive income are presented using the nature of expense 
method. 
 
Foreign Currency Denominated Transactions 
 
Foreign currency transactions are initially recognized by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot 
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. At 
the end of each reporting date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. 
Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the foreign exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Basic Income (Loss) Per Share 
 
Basic income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the income (loss) by the weighted average number 
of common shares issued during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the Company and 
held as treasury shares. 
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Provisions and Contingencies 
 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made with the amount of the obligation. If the effect 
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
 
Where discounting is used, an increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an 
interest expense. When the Company expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain and its amount is 
estimable. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income, 
net of any reimbursement. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not 
recognized in the financial statements, but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the 
financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the 
asset and the related income are recognized in the financial statements. 
 
Events after the Reporting Date 
 
The Company identifies post-year events that occurred after the reporting date but before the date when 
the Company financial statements were authorized for issue. Post year-end events that provide additional 
information about the Company’s position at the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the 
financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the financial 
statements when material. 
 
 
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments and 
estimates that affect amounts reported in the Company financial statements. These judgments and 
estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company 
believes the following represent a summary of these significant judgments and estimate and related 
impact and associated risks in the Company financial statements. 
 
Significant Accounting Judgments in Applying the Company's Accounting Policies 
 
Assessing the Company’s Going Concern 
 
In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, management take into account all 
available information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to 12 months from the reporting 
date. The degree of consideration and available information depends on the facts and wide range of 
factors that the management may need to consider (e.g. current and expected profitability, debt 
repayment schedules and potential sources of replacement financing). As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, 
the Company still continues to use the going concern basis of accounting. 
 
Leases 
 
The Company has entered into contracts of lease for its office space it occupies. The Company 
determines the contract if there is a substance of lease. In determining the substance of the lease, the 
Company considered, among others, whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. Based on management judgment, the Company’s lease for its office space has substance 
of lease, thus, the Company recognized right-of-use asset representing the right to use the leased asset 
and lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
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Classifying financial instruments 
 
The Company exercises judgment in classifying financial instruments in accordance with PFRS 9. The 
Company exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial 
recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the 
Company’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics and the definitions of a financial 
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its 
legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position. Accordingly, the Company 
classified its cash in banks, trade and other receivables due from related parties and other noncurrent 
assets as financial assets at amortized cost because these are mainly held to receive contractual cash 
flow. 
 
Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 
 
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below. 
 
Determining the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities that are not quoted in active market are determined by 
using generally accepted valuation techniques. Valuation involves significant judgment and it is likely that 
different valuation techniques will provide different results. This is because the inputs used, and any 
adjustments to those inputs, may differ depending on the technique used. 
 
Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically 
reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them. Inputs used in these models 
are from observable data and quoted market prices in respect of similar financial instruments. 
 
All models are approved by the BOD before these are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that 
outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
could affect reported fair value of financial instruments. The Company considers that it is impracticable to 
disclose with sufficient reliability the possible effects of sensitivities surrounding the fair value of financial 
instruments that are not quoted in active market. 
 
Information on fair values of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 18. 
 
Impairment of input tax 
 
Management believes that the recoverability of input tax is doubtful since the Company is not expecting 
income subject to output tax in the near future as of December 31, 2023. However, the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue issued a RR 3-2024 that no longer allows deferral of VAT. Thus, starting April 28, 2024, the 
company no longer recognized impairment of input VAT as it is needed to offset against its Output VAT 
on interest income during end of the year. 
 
The Company’s input tax amounted to ₱2,406,343 and ₱2,900,090 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, 
respectively (see Note 6). 
 
Deferred tax assets 
 
The Company reviews the carrying amounts at each reporting date and reduces deferred tax assets to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Due to non-operation of the Company, management expects that 
the Company will continue to incur losses and the related deferred tax assets will not be utilized in the 
near future.  
 
The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to ₱1,230,950 and ₱1,306,704 as at March 
31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 
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Allowance for impairment of advances to related parties 
 
Allowance for impairment of advances to related parties is maintained at a level considered adequate to 
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on the status of the 
advances to related parties, past collection experience and other factors that may affect collectability. 
 
Advances to related parties amounted to ₱241,361,676 and ₱258,623,446, net of allowance for 
impairment loss of ₱242,526,152 and ₱221,205,384 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively (see 
Note 11). 
 
Allowance for impairment on financial assets at FVOCI 
 
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Since management has assessed that the 
financial assets at FVOCI cannot be recovered and the decline in book value per share is other than 
temporary, the Company has provided allowance for impairment loss. 
 
The Company’s financial assets at FVOCI amounted to ₱17,664,500 and ₱82,276,436 net of allowance 
amounted to ₱20,000,000 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively (see Note 7). 
 
 
5.  CASH 
 
Cash represents cash in bank with outstanding balance of ₱63,708 and ₱1,037,631 as at March 31, 2025 
and 2024, respectively. Interest income earned from bank deposits were ₱8 and ₱43 as of March 31, 
2025 and 2024, respectively. 
 
Cash in bank generally earns interest at annual rates based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 
0.0625% per annum in 2025 and 2024. 
 
There is no restriction on the Company’s cash as at March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
 
6. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Prepayments and other current assets as at March 31 consist of: 
 

2025 2024 
Input tax ₱2,406,344 ₱2,900,090 
Other current assets 43,213 43,713 
 2,449,557 2,943,803 
Less: Valuation allowance on input tax  (2,325,446) (2,900,090) 

 
₱124,111 ₱43,713 

 
Movements in the allowance on input tax are as follows: 
 

2025 2024 
Balance at beginning of year ₱2,325,446 ₱2,833,692 
Provision during the period –13 – 66,398 
Balance at end of period ₱2,325,446 ₱2,900,090 

Other current assets represent mainly cash in bank subject to garnishment. 
 
The Company had provided full valuation allowance on its input tax since they are not expecting to 
generate income subject to VAT on which it can claim all its input tax against its output tax. 
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7.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (net) 
 
Financial Assets at FVOCI as at March 31 consist of: 
 

2025 2024 
Unquoted shares  
Balance at beginning and end of the quarter ₱ 65,711,573 ₱65,711,573  
Unrealized fair value loss (62,604,073) – 
 3,107,500 65,711,573 
Quoted shares 
Cost 7,529,480 7,529,480 
Net unrealized fair value gain 7,027,520 9,035,383 
  14,557,000 16,564,863 

₱17,664,500 ₱82,276,436 
 
Investment in unquoted shares of stock represents ownership of the Company in Forum Exploration, Inc. 
(FEI) and Taguig Lake City Development Corporation (TLCDC). These investments are classified as 
financial assets at FVOCI as the Company does not participate in the financial and operating policy of the 
investee which manifest control, joint control or significant influence. The Company believes that the 
carrying amount of these unquoted shares of stock approximates fair value. 
 
Investment in quoted shares of stock represents ownership investment in Philippine Estates Corporation 
(PHES), a publicly listed Company. The fair value of these shares has been determined directly by 
reference to published prices in the active market 
 
The movements in the unrealized fair value gain on financial assets at FVOCI are as follows: 
 
 2025 2024 
At beginning of year ₱5,270,642 ₱8,533,418
Fair value changes during the period 1,756,878 501,965
 ₱7,027,520 ₱9,035,383

 
The Company’s financial assets at FVOCI as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are not held as collateral for 
its financial liabilities. 
 

8.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (net) 
 
During 2019, the Company recognized a right-of-use asset as a result of adoption of PFRS 16. The 
carrying amount as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 is ₱181,957 and ₱47,514, respectively.  
 
Write-off of right-of-use asset pertains to expired lease contracts 
 
Based on the impairment review of the Company’s right-of-use asset, the Company believes that there is 
no indication of impairment on its right-of-use asset as at March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 

9.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES 
 
Accounts payable and other liabilities as at March 31 consist of: 
 
 2025 2024 
Accounts payable ₱158,637 ₱– 
Accrued expense 147,000 261,500 
Taxes payable  7,325 7,325 
Deferred Output VAT 2,165,618 2,165,618 
 ₱2,478,580 ₱2,434,443 

 
Accrued expenses pertain to unpaid professional fees.  

Accounts payable pertains to the amount due to suppliers payable within one (1) year and do not bear 
any interest.  
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There were no assets of the Company that were collateralized for the above accounts payable and other 
liabilities. 
 
10.  CAPITAL STOCK 
 
Details of the Company’s capital stock as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are as follows: 
 
Capital stock No. Shares Par value Total 
Authorized 3,500,000,000 ₱1 ₱3,500,000,000 
    
Subscribed 1,875,000,000 ₱1 ₱1,875,000,000 
Subscription receivable (667,456,379)   1 (667,456,379) 
Subscribed and paid up 1,207,543,621   1 ₱1,207,543,621 
Treasury shares (36,056,750)   1 (36,056,750) 
Issued and outstanding 1,171,486,871 ₱1 ₱1,171,486,871 

 
The Company has one class of common shares which carry no right to fixed income. No movement in the 
capital stock of the Company in the 1st Quarter of 2025 and 2024 reporting periods. There were no 
shares of the Company reserved for issue under options and contracts for the sale of shares as at March 
31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
Track record of registration of securities 

The Company was originally registered as Cophil Exploration, Inc. with the SEC on January 8, 1993. The 
Company was listed with the PSE on December 19, 1994 with initial registered shares of 50 billion at 
₱0.01 par value per share.   

On September 2, 1996, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved a resolution to amend the 
Company’s Article of Incorporation by changing the par value per share of ₱0.01 to ₱1.00, removing the 
pre-emptive rights of shareholders and increasing authorized capital stock from ₱500 million divided by 
50 billion shares to ₱2 billion divided into 2 billion shares. On September 27, 1996, SEC approved the 
amendment on the Company’s capital structure.   

On August 22, 1997, the Board of Directors and the stockholders approved a further increase in the 
Company’s authorized capital stock from ₱2 billion to ₱3.5 billion divided into 3.5 billion shares with a par 
value of ₱1 per share. On March 11, 1998, SEC approved the Company’s increased in authorized capital 
stock.   

The Company has 1.5 billion shares listed and traded in the PSE as at March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
 
11,  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
The Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Such transactions 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and with no definite terms of repayments period. The Company did 
not provide nor received any guarantee on its transaction with related parties. All outstanding balances 
are to be settled through cash or offsetting arrangement. 
 
Details of related party relationships, transactions and balances as follows as of March 31: 
 

Related parties and 
relationships 

Nature of 
transactions 

Volume of transactions Outstanding receivable Terms/ 
conditions 2025 2024 2025 2024 

With common key management 
     

The Wellex Group, Inc. 
(TWGI) 

 
Cash advance 

 
(₱551,200) 

 
(₱1,598,295) 

 
₱312,256,753 

 
₱308,197,754 

 
Consultancy fee (116,400) (116,400) 

  
 

Rental expense (58,125) (58,125) 
   

Transfer of assets – – 171,631,076 171,631,076 (b) 
    (725,725) (1,772,820) 483,887,829 479,828,830 

 
Impairment loss   – – (242,526,153) (221,205,384) (c) 
    (₱725,725) (₱1,772,820) ₱241,361,676 ₱258,623,446   
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Related parties and 
relationships 

Nature of 
transactions 

Volume of transactions Outstanding receivable Terms/ 
conditions 2025 2024 2025 2024 

With common key management      
Forum Exploration, 
Ltd.(FEL) 

 
Cash advance 

 
- 

 
- 

 
₱4,743,968 

 
₱4,666,933 

 
 (d)  

 (a) Advances to The Wellex Group, Inc.  (TWGI) 
 
On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory note amounting to ₱296,659,777 in favor of the 
Company. The term of the loan is five years maturing on December 15, 2025, bearing an interest of 2% 
per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory note amounted to ₱23,979,996 and 
₱18,046,801 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 
 
To settle the outstanding advances, the Company entered into the following contracts with TWGI, which 
in return, amounts incurred will be applied to the outstanding advances.  
 
The Company leases an office space in May 2014 from The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI) located at the 35th 
Floor One Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave. corner Meralco Ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig City. 
The lease is for a period of two years but renewable thereafter upon mutual agreement of both parties. 
The contract has been rented four times since then and is currently valid until April 30, 2026. Office space 
quarterly rental including storage room usage and utilities is ₱55,500, exclusive of VAT and withholding 
tax for both periods ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
Total rental and utilities expense charged to operations for the quarters ended March 31 as follows (Note 
12): 
 

 2025 2024 
Rent        ₱37,500       ₱37,500 
Utilities 18,000 18,000 

       ₱55,500       ₱55,500 
 
The net carrying amount of the right-of-use asset recognized as at March 31, 2025 is disclosed in Note 8. 
 
In April 2012, the Company has entered into a consultancy agreement with TWGI, whereby the latter will 
provide corporate planning and financial services on its various corporate functions and undertakings. 
The contract has been renewed five times since then and is currently valid until April 30, 2026. Total 
management fee charged to operations amounted to ₱120,000 for both periods ended March 31, 2025 
and 2025. 
 
The Company originally provides allowance for impairment amounting to ₱70,895,077 and ₱49,574,308 
as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, on advances to TWGI prior to agreements entered to settle 
the outstanding advances. Allowance for impairment will be reversed once the unimpaired portion of 
advances is substantially collected and upon assessment by the management on the continuity of the 
existing agreements. 
 
(b) Advances to Forum Exploration, Inc. (FEI) 
 
FEI is a legal and beneficial owner of 100% interest in Service Contract (SC) 40, an upstream oil and gas 
contract area in the Philippines, entered into with the Philippine Government through the Department of 
Energy. Annual gas production from field on SC 40 totaled 41.09 million standard cubic feet (MMSCF) 
and 78.66 MMSCF since the start of production in 2012.  
 
FEI has also implemented Work Program and Budget as approved by DOE on November 17, 2014 which 
includes, among others, a commitment to perform land gravity survey over the Dalingding Structure 
starting March 2015. Since 2014, FEI has performing geological and geophysical study aimed to identify 
and prioritize highly prospective areas for future exploration.  
 
In SC 40 (North Cebu), which Forum operates through its 66.67% subsidiary, Forum Exploration, Inc. 
(“FEI”), conducted a land gravity survey over the Libertad and Dalingding areas in Bogo City and 
Daanbantayan Municipality, respectively. The gravity survey aimed to further delineate the carbonate 
bodies detected in the said areas by the initial 3D gravity modelling exercise.  
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In June 2022, FEI contracted a drilling consultant to prepare drilling programs and budgets for two wells, 
one of which will be located in the Dalingding Prospect, a reef structure defined by seismic with the Late 
Miocene to Pliocene-age Barili Limestone as the primary target. A well, Dalingding-1, drilled this structure 
in 1996 and was plugged and abandoned as a dry hole with minor gas shows after reaching a total depth 
of 1,508 ft. FEI’s recent re-evaluation of the prospect had concluded that Dalingding-1 did not reach the 
Barili target, which is currently estimated at 480 ft, below the well’s final depth. FEI proposes drilling 
Dalingding-2 down to 4,000 ft to reach the Barili Limestone and secondary targets underneath. 
 
In August 2022, FEI contracted third party for the disposal of the Hycalog Rig and ancillary equipment 
stored in Brgy. Maya, Daanbantayan, Cebu Province. The sale process started on September 13, 2022 of 
which a Luzon-based company offered the highest bid. The pull-out of the items in December 2022 and 
was completed in June 2023. 
 
An Independent Technical Evaluation involving a review of available data, project risk management, and 
project economics of the Maya and Dalingding Prospects started in the first quarter of 2023. The initial 
findings show that the deterministic and probablilistic volumetric estimates for the Dalingding Prospect 
indicate mean resources of 10 billion cubic feet (“BCF”) for a Gas Case and 3.5 MMBO for an Oil Case. 
The study, included prospect risking and economics, was completed in 1Q 2024. 
 
In 2024, FEI plans to conduct a magnetotelluric (“MT”) survey to further evaluate the Dalingding and 
Maya prospects. The information to be obtained will be correlated with existing seismic, gravity and 
magnetic data in the area. 
 
As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, FEI has not yet returned the value of the exploration assets that the 
Company transferred. The total value of exploration assets recorded as advances was ₱171,631,076 and 
was covered by full valuation allowance for impairment loss. 
 
(c) Advances from FORUM GSEC 101 Ltd. (Forum Exploration, Inc Ltd) 
 
The Company received USD denominated cash advances from FEI - Ltd. amounted to $82,922 with no 
definite terms of payment and will be settled in USD. Balance as at March 31 as follows” 
 
 2025 2024 
At beginning of year ₱4,796,623 ₱4,591,391 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain/loss –13 52,655 75,543 
At end of year ₱4,743,968 ₱4,666,934 

 
(d) Remuneration to key management personnel 
 
With the Company’s tight cash position, management decided to suspend any form of compensation 
given to key management personnel.  
 
(e) Others 
 
The Company’s administrative functions are performed by its related party, TWGI. 
 
 
12.  COSTS AND EXPENSES 
 
Cost and expenses for the quarters ended March 31 consists of: 
 
 2025 2024 2023 
Professional fees ₱150,000 ₱150,000 ₱120,000 
Membership fees and dues 250,000 250,000 250,000 
Management fees  120,000 120,000 120,000 
Taxes and licenses 28,250 61,759 18,857 
Rent and utilities 55,500 55,500 55,500 
Travel and transportation – 360 350 
Miscellaneous 5,591 4,405 3,500 
 ₱609,341 ₱642,024 ₱568,207 
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Membership fees and dues include annual PSE listing and registration.  
 
Miscellaneous expense mainly consists of website maintenance fees. 
   
13.  OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES) – net 
 
Other expenses for the quarters ended March 31 consists of: 
 
  2025 2024 2023 
Provision for impairment on: 

   
Input tax  6 ₱– (₱66,398) (₱74,184) 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain(loss)  11 52,655 (75,542) 109,941 
Interest income  5 8 43 38 
  ₱52,663 (₱141,897) ₱35,795 

 
14.  INCOME TAXES 
 
On March 26, 2021, the Republic Act (RA) 11534, known as “The Corporate Recovery and Tax 
Incentives for Enterprises Act” (CREATE Act), was passed into law. The salient provisions of the 
CREATE Act applicable to the Company are as follow: 
 
1.  Effective July 1, 2020, the corporate income tax rate is reduced from 30% to 20% for domestic 

corporations with net taxable income not exceeding ₱5,000,000 and with total assets not exceeding 
₱100,000,000, excluding land on which the particular business entity’s office, plant, and equipment 
are situated during the taxable year for which the tax is imposed at 20%. All other domestic 
corporations and resident foreign corporations will be subject to 25% income tax; 

 
2.  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% to 1% effective July 1, 2020, to June 

20, 2023; 
 
3.  The imposition of improperly accumulated earnings is repealed. 
 
15.  INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE 
 
The following table presents information necessary to calculate the loss per share as of March 31: 
 
  2025 2024 2023 
Net loss for the period (₱556,678) (₱783,921) (₱532,412) 
Weighted average number of common    
     shares outstanding during the period 1,171,486,871 1,171,486,871 1,171,486,871 
 (₱0.0005) (₱0.0007) (₱0.0005) 

 
 
16.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risk which results from both its operating and financing 
activities. The Company’s risk management is coordinated with the BOD and focuses on actively securing 
the short-term cash flows to finance its operation. 
 
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash, advances to related parties, financial 
assets at FVOCI, accounts payable and other liabilities (excluding local and other taxes and other 
liabilities to government agencies), and advances from a related party. The main purpose of these 
financial instruments is to raise financing for the Company’s operations. The Company does not actively 
engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it have options. 
 
The most significant financial risks in which the Company is exposed to are described below: 
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Credit risk 
 
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss 
to the Company. The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its financial assets which composed 
of cash and advances to related parties. 
 
In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has developed and maintained internal credit risk grading to 
categorize exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Company uses its own trading 
records to rate its major customers and other debtors. 
 
The Company current credit risk grading framework is as follows: 
 

Basis for 
recognizing 

ECLs 

Minimum 
allowance 
for credit 

losses Category Description 
Base Stage 

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and 
does not have any past due amounts 12-month ECS 0% 0% 1 

Doubtful Amount is 1-30 days past due or there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition 

Lifetime ECL-not 
credit impaired 

25% 1% 2 

 Amount is 31-90 days past due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-not 
credit impaired 

25% 5% 2 

 Amount is 91-180 days past due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-not 
credit impaired 

25% 10% 2 

  Amount is 181-360 days past due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-not 
credit impaired 

25% 12% 2 

In default Amount is over 1-2 years oast due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit 
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-
credit impaired 

50% 15% 3 

 Amount is over 2-3 years oast due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit 
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-
credit impaired 

100% 15% 3 

  Amount is over 3-5 years oast due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit 
impaired 

Lifetime ECL-
credit impaired 

100% 50% 3 

Write off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is 
in severe financial difficulty and the Group has 
no realistic prospect of recovery 

Amount is 
written-off 

100% 100% 3 

 
The maximum credit risk exposure of the financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets 
shown on the face of statement of financial position, as summarized below: 
 

  
  March 31, 2025 

    

Basis for 
recognizing 

ECL 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

Loss 
Allowance 

Net carrying 
amount 

Cash in bank (a) 
 

₱63,708 ₱– ₱63,708 
Advances to related parties (b) Lifetime ECL 483,887,827 (242,526,151) 241,361,676 
      ₱483,951,535 (₱242,526,151) ₱241,425,384 

 
 

  March 31, 2024 

    

Basis for 
recognizing 

ECL 
Gross carrying 

amount 
Loss 

Allowance 
Net carrying 

amount 
Cash in bank (a) ₱1,037,631 ₱-       ₱1,037,631 
Advances to related parties (b) Lifetime ECL 479,828,830  (221,205,384) 258,623,446 
      ₱480,866,461 (₱221,205,384) ₱259,661,077 
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None of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, except 
for cash as described below.  
 
(a) Cash in banks 

The credit risk for cash in banks is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks 
with high quality external credit ratings. Cash in banks are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to a maximum coverage of ₱500,000 for every depositor per banking institution.  
 
(b) Advances to related parties 

For advances to related parties, the Company has applied the simplified approach to measure the loss 
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a 
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the 
debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.  

To measure the ECL, advances to related parties have been grouped based on shared credit risk 
characteristics and the days past due. The Company has therefore concluded that the expected loss 
rates for advances to related parties are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the financial 
asset.  

The management continues to review receivable from related parties for any legally enforceable right to 
offset with liabilities with the expressed intention of the borrower to settle on a net basis.  

Impaired accounts represent account of related parties that have not paid for a while and for which the 
Company believes that a portion of the receivables may not be collected. The allowance is estimated 
based on the Company's estimate for accounts which it believes may no longer be collected.  
 
As at March 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company has entered into an agreement with its related party to 
settle the advances (Note 11). 
 
Liquidity risk  
 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due.  
 
The Company is mainly exposed to liquidity risk through its maturing liabilities. The Company has a policy 
of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing liabilities will be adequately met.  
 
The Company manages liquidity risk through continuous collection of advances to related parties which is 
considered as cash inflow to finance its operation. The Company continuously monitoring forecast and 
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of liabilities.   
 
The details of the maturity analysis of the Company’s liabilities are as follows: 
 

March 31, 2025  Total  
 On 

Demand  
Less than 
3 months 

3 to 12 
months 

1 to 5 
years 

Accounts payable and other 
liabilities 

 
₱305,638 

 
₱– 

 
₱– 

 
₱305,638 

 
₱– 

Lease Liability 137,908 – – 137,908 – 
Advances from related parties  4,743,968 – – – 4,743,968 
  ₱5,187,514 ₱– ₱– ₱443,546 ₱4,743,968 
*excluding government liabilities      

 

March 31, 2024  Total  
 On 

Demand  
Less than 
3 months 

3 to 12 
months 

1 to 5 
years 

Accounts payable and other 
liabilities 

 
₱261,500 

 
₱– 

 
₱– 

 
₱261,500 

 
₱– 

Lease Liability 48,323 – – 48,323 – 
Advances from related parties  4,666,934 – – - 4,666,934 
  ₱4,976,757 ₱– ₱– ₱309,823 ₱4,666,934 
*excluding government liabilities      
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Equity price risk  
 
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity instrument decreases as a result of changes in the 
value of individual stocks. The Company’s exposure to equity price risk arises from investments held by 
the Company and classified in the Company’s statements of financial position either as financial asset at 
FVOCI.  

Equity instruments designated at FVOCI in listed and non-listed companies are held for strategic rather 
than trading purposes. The Company does not actively trade these investments. The Company also 
invested in portfolio of listed shares which are held for trading and has designated equity instrument in a 
non-listed Company at FVOCI.  
 
Foreign currency risk  
 
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures primarily with respect 
to the U.S. dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized 
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency. 
Significant fluctuation in the exchange rates could significantly affect the Company’s financial position.   
 
The Company is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk through its advances from related party $82,922 
which amounted to ₱4,743,968 and ₱4,666,934 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.  
 
The sensitivity rate used on reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel is 
10% and it represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange 
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary assets 
and liabilities and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% in foreign exchange rates. A 
positive number indicates an increase in net income when the Philippine peso strengthens at 10% against 
the relevant currency. For 10% weakening of the Philippine peso against the relevant currency, there 
would be an equal and opposite impact on the net income.  
 
Capital Risk Objective and Management  
 
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure its ability to continue as a going 
concern.  

The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk. Profiles 
for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Company’s external environment and the risks 
underlying the Company’s business operations and industry.  
 
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt 
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including accounts payable and other 
liabilities, lease liability and advances from related party as shown in the statements of financial position) 
less cash. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the statements of financial position plus net 
debt.   
 
Gearing ratio compares some form of owner’s equity to borrowed funds. It is a measure of financial 
leverage demonstrating the degree to which the Company’s activities are funded by owner’s funds versus 
creditors’ funds.    
 
The gearing ratios as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 were as follows: 
 
 2025 2024 
Debt ₱8,337,211 ₱8,099,978 
Less: Cash 63,708 1,037,631 
Net debt 8,273,503 7,062,347 
Equity 251,104,951 333,940,843 
Gearing ratio 3.29% 2.11% 
 
The Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirement amounting to ₱6,250,000 which is the 
minimum paid-up capital requirement of SEC for mining companies. As March 31, 2025 and 2024, the 
Company is in compliance with this externally imposed capital requirement. 
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17. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
The reconciliation about the changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities including 
both cash and non-cash changes for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 as follows: 
 

 

Balance as at 
January 1, 2025 

Effect of 
foreign 

exchange rates 
New 

Leases 

Changes from 
financing cash 

flow 

Balance as 
at March 31, 

2025 
Advances from 
a related party 

            
₱4,796,623 

                      
₱52,655 

                     
₱–   

                                  
₱–   

                  
₱4,743,968 

Lease liability 137,908 – – – 137,908 
  ₱4,934,531 ₱– ₱–  ₱–  ₱ 4,881,876 

 

Balance as at 
January 1, 2024 

Effect of foreign 
exchange rates 

New 
Leases 

Changes from 
financing cash 

flow 

Balance as 
at March 31, 

2024 
Advances from 
a related party 

            
₱4,591,391 

                      
₱75,543 

                      
₱–   

   
₱–   

                  
₱4,666,934 

Lease liability 48,323 –   –  –  48,323 
  ₱4,639,714 ₱75,543 ₱–  ₱–  ₱4,715,257 

 
 
18.  FAIR VALUE INFORMATION 
 
Assets measured at fair value 
 
The fair values of the Company’s assets, which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting 
period, are determined based on quoted prices in active market. 
 
Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value 
 
For the long-term financial assets and liabilities, the fair value of the non-interest bearing noncurrent 
assets and liabilities are determined based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the 
prevailing credit adjusted PH BVAL that are specific to the tenor of the instruments‟ cash flow as at 
reporting date.  
  
The carrying amounts of cash and accounts payable and other liabilities approximate their fair values due 
to the relatively short term maturities of these financial instruments. 
 
Certain financial assets at FVOCI amounting to ₱65,711,573 as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 are carried 
at cost less impairment loss since there was no reliable basis for the measurement of the fair value. 
 
 
19.  SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE 
 
On December 28, 2010, Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010 became effective and amended certain 
provisions of RR No. 21-2002 prescribing the manner of compliance with any documentary and/or 
procedural requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements and 
income tax returns. Section 2 of RR No. 21-2002 was further amended to include in the Notes to 
Financial Statements information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the year in 
addition to what is mandated by PFRS. 
 
a) Output value-added tax  
 
The Company has no output VAT since it does not have any income subject to VAT for the quarters 
ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
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b) Input value-added tax 
 
 2025 2024 
At beginning of year ₱2,325,446 ₱2,833,692 
Current purchases and payments for:   
   Domestic purchases of services 80,897 66,398 
 ₱2,406,343 ₱2,900,090 

 
c) Importation 
 
The Company did not pay nor accrue custom duties or tariff fees as the Company did no import any 
goods or equipment for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
d) Excise Tax 
 
The Company does not pay nor accrue any excise tax as there was no related transaction that requires 
the payment of the said tax for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
e) Documentary stamp tax 
 
The Company did not pay nor accrue any documentary stamp tax as there was no related transaction 
that requires the payment of the said tax for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 
f) Taxes and licenses 
 
Details of taxes and licenses account are broken down as follows: 
 
 2025 2024 
Business Permits ₱25,378 ₱58,887 
Corporate Community Tax 2,872 2,872 
BIR Annual Registration – - 
 ₱28,250 ₱61,759 

 
g) Withholding taxes 
 
The total amount of expanded withholding tax accrued and paid for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 
and 2024 is ₱26,975 and ₱26,975, respectively. 
 
h) Deficiency tax assessment and tax cases 
 
The Company has no deficiency tax assessments with the BIR or tax cases outstanding or pending in 
courts or bodies outside of the BIR for the quarters ended March 31, 2025 and 2024. 
 

* * * 
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FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
APPENDIX A – FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS 

 
 

 
March 31, 

2025 
March 31, 

2024 
December 31, 

 2024 
Profitability ratios:    
Return on asset N/A N/A 0.00:1 
Return on equity N/A N/A 0.00:1 
Net profit margin N/A N/A N/A 
    
Solvency and liquidity ratios:    
Current ratio 0.05:1 0.32:1 0.04:1 
Debt to equity ratio 0.03:1 0.02:1 0.03:1 
Quick ratio 0.02:1 0.30:1 0.03:1 
Cash-flow liquidity ratio (0.22):1 (0.24):1 (0.78):1 
    
Financial leverage ratio:    
Asset to equity ratio 1.03:1 1.02:1 1.03:1 
Debt to asset ratio 0.03:1 0.02:1 0.03:1 
Interest rate coverage ratio N/A N/A N/A 
 




